
 

Audit Committee 
 

 
 

Wednesday 30th September 2015 
 
10.00 am 
 
Council Chamber B 
Council Offices 
Brympton Way 
Yeovil 
BA20 2HT 

(disabled access is available at this meeting venue)     
 

 
The public and press are welcome to attend. 
 
If you would like any further information on the items to be discussed, please ring the 
Agenda Co-ordinator, Anne Herridge 01935 462570, website: 
www.southsomerset.gov.uk 
 
This Agenda was issued on Tuesday 22 September 2015. 
 

 
Ian Clarke, Assistant Director (Legal & Corporate Services) 

 
 
 
 

This information is also available on our website 
www.southsomerset.gov.uk 

 

Public Document Pack

http://www.southsomerset.gov.uk/


Audit Committee Membership 

 
The following members are requested to attend the meeting: 
 
Chairman: Derek Yeomans 
Vice-chairman: Tony Lock 
 
Jason Baker 
Mike Beech 
Mike Best 
 

Carol Goodall 
Val Keitch 
Graham Middleton 
 

David Norris 
Colin Winder 
 

 

South Somerset District Council – Council Plan 

 

Our focuses are: (all equal) 
 

 Jobs – We want a strong economy which has low unemployment and thriving 
businesses 

 Environment – We want an attractive environment to live in with increased recycling and 
lower energy use 

 Homes – We want decent housing for our residents that matches their income 

 Health and Communities – We want communities that are healthy, self-reliant and have 
individuals who are willing to help each other 

 
 

Members Questions on Reports prior to the Meeting 

 

Members of the Committee are requested to contact report authors on points of clarification 
prior to the Committee meeting. 
 
 
 

Ordnance Survey mapping/map data included within this publication is provided by South Somerset District 
Council under licence from the Ordnance Survey in order to fulfil its public function to undertake its statutory 
functions on behalf of the district.  Persons viewing this mapping should contact Ordnance Survey copyright for 
advice where they wish to licence Ordnance Survey mapping/map data for their own use. South Somerset 
District Council - LA100019471 - 2015. 
 

 



 

 

Information for the Public 

 
The purpose of the Audit Committee is to provide independent assurance of the adequacy of 
the risk management framework and the associated control environment, independent 
scrutiny of the authority’s financial and non-financial performance, to the extent that it affects 
the authority’s exposure to risk and weakens the control environment and to oversee the 
financial reporting process. 
 
The Audit Committee should review the Code of Corporate Governance seeking assurance 
where appropriate from the Executive or referring matters to management on the scrutiny 
function. 
 
The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are: 
 
Internal Audit Activity 
 
1. To approve the Internal Audit Charter and annual Internal Audit Plan; 
 
2. To receive quarterly summaries of Internal Audit reports and seek assurance from 

management that action has been taken; 
 
3. To receive an annual summary report and opinion, and consider the level of 

assurance it provides on the council’s governance arrangements;  
 
4. To monitor the action plans for Internal Audit reports assessed as “partial” or “no 

assurance;” 
 
5. To consider specific internal audit reports as requested by the Head of Internal Audit, 

and monitor the implementation of agreed management actions;  
 
6. To receive an annual report to review the effectiveness of internal audit to ensure 

compliance with statutory requirements and the level of assurance it provides on the 
council’s governance arrangements;  

 
External Audit Activity 
 
7. To consider and note the annual external Audit Plan and Fees;  
 
8. To consider the reports of external audit including the Annual Audit Letter and seek 

assurance from management that action has been taken; 
 
Regulatory Framework 
 
9. To consider the effectiveness of SSDC’s risk management arrangements, the control 

environment and associated anti-fraud and corruption arrangements and seek 
assurance from management that action is being taken; 

 
10. To review the Annual Governance Statement (AGS) and monitor associated action 

plans; 
 
11. To review the Local Code of Corporate Governance and ensure it reflects best 

governance practice. This will include regular reviews of part of the Council’s 
Constitution and an overview of risk management; 

 
12. To receive reports from management on the promotion of good corporate 

governance; 



Financial Management and Accounts 
 
13. To review and approve the annual Statement of Accounts, external auditor’s opinion 

and reports to members and monitor management action in response to issues 
raised; 

 
14. To provide a scrutiny role in Treasury Management matters including regular 

monitoring of treasury activity and practices. The committee will also review and 
recommend the Annual Treasury Management Strategy Statement and Investment 
Strategy, MRP Strategy, and Prudential Indicators to Council; 

 
15. To review and recommend to Council changes to Financial Procedure Rules and 

Procurement Procedure Rules; 
 
Overall Governance 
 
16. The Audit Committee can request of the Assistant Director – Finance and Corporate 

Services (S151 Officer), the Assistant Director – Legal and Corporate Services (the 
Monitoring Officer), or the Chief Executive (Head of Paid Services) a report (including 
an independent review) on any matter covered within these Terms of Reference; 

 
17. The Audit Committee will request action through District Executive if any issue 

remains unresolved; 
 
18. The Audit Committee will report to each full Council a summary of its activities.  
 
Meetings of the Audit Committee are held monthly including at least one meeting with the 
Council’s external auditor, although in practice the external auditor attends more frequently. 
 
Agendas and minutes of this committee are published on the Council’s website at 
www.southsomerset.gov.uk 
 
The Council’s Constitution is also on the web site and available for inspection in council 
offices. 
 
Further information can be obtained by contacting the agenda co-ordinator named on the 
front page. 
 
 



 

 

Audit Committee 
 
Wednesday 30 September 2015 
 
Agenda 
 

Preliminary Items 
 
 

1.   Minutes  

 
To approve as a correct record the minutes of the previous meeting held on 27th August 
2015. 

2.   Apologies for absence  

 

3.   Declarations of Interest  
 
In accordance with the Council's current Code of Conduct (adopted July 2012), which 
includes all the provisions relating to Disclosable Pecuniary Interests (DPI), personal and 
prejudicial interests, Members are asked to declare any DPI and also any personal 
interests (and whether or not such personal interests are also "prejudicial") in relation to 
any matter on the agenda for this meeting.  A DPI is defined in The Relevant Authorities 
(Disclosable Pecuniary Interests) Regulations 2012 (SI 2012 No. 1464) and Appendix 3 
of the Council’s Code of Conduct. A personal interest is defined in paragraph 2.8 of the 
Code and a prejudicial interest is defined in paragraph 2.9. 

4.   Public question time  

 
 
Items for Discussion 
 

5.   2014-15 Annual Statement of Accounts (Pages 6 - 11) 

 

6.   Summary Statement of Accounts 2014-15 (Pages 12 - 16) 

 

7.   2014-15 Audit Findings Report (Pages 17 - 52) 

 

8.   Audit Committee Forward Plan (Pages 53 - 54) 

 
 



2014/15 Annual Statement of Accounts  

 
Strategic Director: Vega Sturgess, Interim Chief Executive 
Assistant Director Donna Parham, Finance and Corporate Services 
Service Manager Amanda Card, Finance Manager 
Lead Officer: Amanda Card, Finance Manager 
Contact Details: amanda.card@southsomerset.gov.uk or 01935 462542 
 

1. Purpose of the Report 
 
1.1   To present the 2014/15 Annual Statement of Accounts to the Audit Committee for 

approval. 
 

2. Recommendation (s) 
 

(a) To approve the 2014/15 Statement of Accounts. A copy of the Statement of 
Accounts has been circulated separately with this agenda. 

 
(b) To note the unqualified opinion on the financial statements. 

 
(c) To authorise that the Assistant Director (Finance and Corporate Services) sign 

the Letter of Representation. 
 

3. Background 
 
3.1 As a local authority SSDC is required to demonstrate compliance with the 

underlying principles of good governance and that a framework exists to 
demonstrate this.  One of the principles is accountability and preparing and 
publishing the annual Statement of Accounts is one way that the Council achieves 
this objective. 

 
3.2 The Accounts and Audit Regulations (England) 2011 came into force on 1 April 

2011. This revised procedures for the approval and publication of the annual 
Statement of Accounts. The Responsible Financial Officer must now sign the 
accounts as true and fair by 30th June of the following year and Members are 
required to formally approve the audited and amended annual Statement of 
Accounts by the 30th September of the following year.  The Statement of Accounts 
needs to be approved and signed by the Chair of this committee. Please contact 
Amanda Card before the meeting on 01935 462542 with any questions on the 
information presented. 

 
3.3 The Statement of Accounts for 2014/15 has been prepared following International 

Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS).  
 
3.4 This report: 
 

 Outlines the key features of the 2014/15 revenue outturn position; 
 

 Summarises the 2014/15 capital outturn position; 
 

 Presents the 2014/15 Statement of Accounts and explains the key features 
and reasons for variations within those accounts. 

 

 A response to the auditor’s report. 

Page 6

Agenda Item 5



4. Key Features of the 2014/15 Outturn Reports  
 
4.1 Revenue Outturn 
 
4.1.1 The figures that were presented to District Executive on 4th June 2015 represent 

the “Above the Line” budgets that are monitored by the Executive on a quarterly 
basis. Members of the Audit Committee will find that the figures presented to 
them in the Statement of Accounts differ from those reported to District Executive 
as they represent both “Above” and “Below the Line” as a total cost. The “Below 
the Line” figures are distinguished from the “Above the Line” costs as they are 
outside the control of the delegated budget holder, being capital charges and 
recharges from support services such as Human Resources, Legal and Financial 
Services. 

 
4.1.2 The overall outturn for SSDC Services in 2014/15 was £1,404,000 (8.5%) 

underspent.  Outlined below is the summary of the figures presented to the 
District Executive on 4th June 2014;  

 

 Original 
Budget 

 
£’000 

Movement 
During the 

Year 
£’000 

Outturn 
Budget 

 
£’000 

Actual 
Spend 

 
£’000 

Variation  
 
 

       £’000 

SSDC Services 17,541 340 17,881 16,477 (1,404) F 

 
(Note that all figures in brackets are underspends). 

 
4.1.3 The comparative position over the last two years was 6.8% underspent in 

2013/14 and 4.8% underspent in 2012/13. (This is after taking out the figures for 
Treasury Management and the Local Strategic Partnership to ease comparison). 

 
4.2 Carry Forwards 
 
4.2.1 The District Executive was asked to approve £302,900 of specific carry forwards 

to 2015/16.  

 
4.3 Revenue Balances and Reserves 
 
4.3.1 Unallocated general fund balances totalled £6,047,000 at the end of the 2014/15 

financial year.  Regular reviews of balances were carried out during 2014/15 and 
the required levels were met throughout the year. The review carried out in May 
2015 has set a level between £3,900,000 and £4,300,000 for the 2015/16 year, 
an increase due to the risks of the economic downturn on the Medium Term 
Financial Plan, the raised risks within the banking sector, and possible greater 
litigation risks but as members can see the levels of balances are still sufficient 
for the new financial year. 

 
4.3.2 Specific Reserves totalled £10,748,000 at the end of the financial year. These 

reserves are actual cash sums set-aside for specific purposes. 
 
4.4 Capital Outturn Report 
 
The capital programme spend for 2014/15 was £3,800,000, which equates to a 13.7% 
underspend. This compares to a 15.1% underspend in 2013/14. 
 

Page 7



5. Loans 
 
SSDC has a loans policy where loans may be given at PWLB (Public Works Loans 
Board) rates to local voluntary and charitable organisations. The maximum outstanding 
sum of those loans must not exceed £1,000,000 at any time. At the end of 2014/15 the 
amount of loans outstanding under this policy was £136,665. 
 
6. Statement of Accounts 
 
6.1 The District Auditor will review the annual Statement of Accounts and supporting 

working papers and will issue his opinion as to whether they present fairly the 
financial position of South Somerset District Council at 31 March 2015 and its 
income and expenditure for the year then ended. 

 
6.2 A copy of the Statement of Accounts has been circulated separately with this 

agenda. In addition to this, a summary of the statements will be prepared in 
leaflet format to make them more accessible to the end user.  

 
7. Key Features from the Statement of Accounts 
 
7.1 The Statement of Accounts contains four core statements reflecting the financial 

position of SSDC as at 31st March 2015. These are; 
 

 Movement in Reserves Statement; 

 Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement; 

 Balance Sheet; 

 Cash Flow Statement. 
 
7.2 There are additional statements relating to the Collection Fund (which deals with 

the collection and distribution of Council Tax and Business Rates). 
 
7.3 It is a statutory requirement for all local authority financial statements to be IFRS 

compliant.  
 
7.4 The Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting did not introduce any further 

technical changes for 2014/15. 
 
8. The Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 
 
8.1 This account gives detailed information about the total expenditure on the services 

we provide. It also shows the council tax and government grants received to help 
pay for those services.  The net operating expenditure figure is reconciled to the 
outturn spend position outlined to District Executive in the following way: 

  

Page 8



 £’000 

Total Spend Reported to the District 
Executive  

 
16,477 

Adjustments:  

Amounts not reported to management but 
included on Costs of Services in 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement. 

 
3,154 

Net Cost of Services (taken from the 
Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement, page 28 of the 
financial statements) 

 
19,631 

 

 
8.2 The major year on year variations (over £0.5 million) and explanations for those 

variances are outlined below: 
 

 
 
 
Services 

Previous 
Year 

2013/14 
 

£’000 

Current 
Year 

2014/15 
 

£’000 

 
 

Variance 
 

£’000 

 
 
 
Reason for Variance 

Central 
Services 

859 1,815 956 Pension lump sum contribution 

Environmental 
and 
Regulatory 
Services 

8,539 7,829 (710) Salary costs reduced and less 
vehicle costs 
 

Corporate and 
Democratic 
Services 

2,608 1,982 (626) Decrease in democratic costs 

Note that figures in brackets show underspends compared to the previous year spend. 
 
9. The Balance Sheet 
 
9.1 The Balance Sheet provides the Council with a snapshot of our financial position 

overall as at the 31st March 2015. At 31 March 2015 the authority’s net assets 
amounted to £23.40 million (£38.38 million at 31 March 2014). 

 
9.2 The authority’s net assets are significantly reduced by the inclusion of the pension 

scheme liability of £80.30 million (compared to £61.81 million at 31 March 2014). 
The present value of the pension scheme liability has decreased to £160.78 million 
(from £135.33 million at 31 March 2014) and the fair value of the scheme assets 
have increased to £80.50 million (£73.52 million at 31 March 201). 

 
9.3 In practice, the amount of net worth that can be used is £53.32 (Usable Capital 

Receipts £35.66 million, Capital Grants Unapplied £0.26 million, Earmarked 
Reserves £10.75 million, General Fund Balances £6.05 million and Share in Joint 
Venture £0.60 million).  

 
9.4 In addition, Members will note the Contingent liabilities disclosed in note 44. 

Contingent liabilities are possible future obligations; they are not accounted for 
within the balance sheet, as the obligation will only be confirmed if uncertain events 
happen in the future. Any claims would need to be funded from SSDC balances. 

 

Page 9



10. Cash Flow Statement 
 
10.1 This statement outlines the changes in cash and cash equivalents of the authority 

during 2014/15.  
 
10.2 There has been a net decrease in cash and cash equivalents of £4.05 million. 
 
10.3 Cash Equivalents are short-term highly liquid investments that are readily 

convertible within 24 hours to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an 
insignificant risk of change in value. 

 
11. Collection Fund 
 
11.1 The Council Tax Reduction Scheme was introduced in 2013/14. This meant that 

recipients of financial assistance for their Council Tax bill received a discount on 
their bill rather than receiving a benefit from Central Government. The total SSDC 
has collected on behalf of all of the precepting authorities (e.g. Somerset County 
Council, Avon & Somerset Police Authority, Devon & Somerset Fire & Rescue 
Authority and town/parish councils). There was a surplus of £0.49 million on the 
Council Tax element of the Collection Fund account. This surplus is split in 
proportion to the amount that each precepting authority precepts.  

 
11.2 From April 2013, the system of Government funding was changed significantly. 

Funding is now based on the amount of business rates each authority collects, 
compared to the old system where the funding was based on a formula that did 
not relate to the business rates collected in the district. Therefore business rates 
retention is intended to provide incentives for local authorities to drive economic 
growth locally. The new funding regime which is based on performance has 
increased the need to monitor and proactively agree priorities to maximise 
business rate income. The share to be paid to central government from business 
rates collected is now 50%. Therefore 50% of business rates is retained locally 
(40% South Somerset District Council, 9% Somerset County Council, 1% Devon 
& Somerset Fire and Rescue Authority). There was a surplus of £0.34 million. 
This deficit is apportioned across central government, South Somerset District 
Council, Somerset County Council and Devon & Somerset Fire and Rescue 
Authority on the proportions detailed previously. 

 
12.  Auditor’s Opinion 
 
13.1 An unqualified opinion has been issued on the financial statements. 

 
13.2 During the audit there were some minor amendments made to the financial 

 statements following discussions with the auditors. Processes have been put in 
 place to eliminate errors that have been identified during the 2014/15 audit to 
 ensure that they do not occur in future years. The amendments are detailed 
 beneath: 

 
13.2.1 Income from New Homes Bonus was incorrectly recorded within Central Service 

income rather than to taxation and non-specific grant income. This has now been 
corrected. 
 

13.2.2 The gross carrying value of intangible assets and the accumulated amortisation 
was misstated within note 16. However, this had no impact on the carrying value 
of intangible assets in the Balance Sheet as the net effect was £0. The figure has 
now been updated. 

Page 10



 
 

13.2.3 The Code of Practice expects that all assets within the same class are valued 
within the same financial year. It is felt that on the grounds of affordability and 
benefit this offers do not justify the cost.  
 

13.2.4 The auditors have asked for sufficient evidence to demonstrate that the carrying 
value of assets based on valuations in prior years are is not materially misstated. 
SSDC purchase the services of the District Valuer, who has given the Council 
assurance that this is the case, but other than this, the Council are unable to 
provide sufficient evidence. It will require investigation about how this can be 
achieved in future years.   
 

13.3 None of the adjustments made impacted upon the financial position of the 
 Council.  

 
14. Financial Implications 
 
There are no financial implications associated with these recommendations.   
 
Background Papers: Revenue outturn 2014/15 

Capital outturn 2014/15 
Accounting Policies 2014/15 
The Audit Findings for South Somerset District Council Year 
Ended 31 March 2015 by Grant Thornton. 

 

Page 11



Summary Statement of Accounts  

 
Strategic Director: Vega Sturgess, Interim Chief Executive 
Assistant Director Donna Parham, Finance and Corporate Services 
Service Manager Amanda Card, Finance Manager 
Lead Officer: Amanda Card, Finance Manager 
Contact Details: amanda.card@southsomerset.gov.uk or 01935 462542 

 
 

Purpose of the Report 
 
To ask Members of the Audit Committee to comment on the 2014/15 Summary of 
Accounts before publication. 
 
 

Recommendation(s) 
 
To comment on the 2014/15 Summary Statement of Accounts. 
 
 

Summary Accounts 
 
The first Summary of Accounts was produced in 2004/05 and we have continued to 
simplify the summary. Although it is no longer a requirement for the Use of Resources 
judgement given by the Audit Commission, it is believed that having such a document 
would still be of benefit. 
 
The key comments sought are in the following areas: 
 

 Will members of the public understand the summary; 
 

 Are the terms and wording easy to interpret; 
 

 Are the areas of key financial performance outlined; 
 

 General feedback on how it could be made more user friendly. 
 
  

Financial Implications 
 
The production of the summary of accounts can be financed within existing budgets. The 
Summary of Accounts will not be printed and distributed but will be a document 
accessible via the Council’s website. 
 
 

Background Papers: 2014/15 Summary Statement of Accounts 

 
 

 

Page 12

Agenda Item 6



A simplified picture of the Council’s 2014/15 Statement of Accounts

 

A full copy of the Council’s 2014/15 accounts is available on request 
or from the Council’s website - www.southsomerset.gov.uk  Please 
telephone 01935 462462 if you wish to be sent a copy

 

South Somerset District Council

Summary of Accounts 
2014/15

We would welcome any comments you have on the 
Summary of Accounts.  Please call the number below 
or email accountancy@southsomerset.gov.uk

Page 13



Where the money goes:

Where the money comes from:

Day to day spending

The chart below shows where South Somerset District Council obtained its gross income of £86.482 
million during 2014/15.

The revenue 
costs are those 
associated with 
the day-to-day 
spending of 
the Council eg. 
staff salaries, 
building 
maintenance 
and electricity. 
This is different 
to capital costs, 
which are 
detailed on the 
next page

We spent £89.110 million on running services.  These costs are included in our revenue account, which 
shows the costs incurred between 1st April 2014 and 31st March 2015.  This is summarised in the pie 
chart below:

The Government 
payments for Benefits 
are ringfenced for Benefit 
Payments that we make.  
This leaves £41.055 
million available for 
expenditure on council 
services.

Notes:  Corporate & Democratic Core include the costs of the activities of Members in their democratic 
role and of providing the infrastructure to provide Council services.  Non distributed costs includes 
costs that are unique to a local authority such as accumulated absences, and those costs not directly 
associated to a particular service eg. pension costs

Deducting the income of £86.482 million from the expenditure 
of £89.110 million leaves a net deficit of £2.628 million. 

The rate of Business 
Rates per property is set 
by Central Government.  
SSDC collect this from 
local businesses. 50% 
is paid over to Central 
Government and then 
redistributed across the 
country based on the 
adult population. SSDC 
retained 40%, 9% is 
paid to Somerset County 
Council and 1% is paid to 
Devon & Somerset Fire & 
Rescue.

Housing Services, 
£48.165m

54%

Central Services, 
£4.515m

5%

Environmental & 
Regulatory 
Services, 
£10.318m

12%

Cultural & Related 
Services, £7.482m 

9%

Planning Services, 
£7.171m 

8%

Town & Parish 
Precepts, 
£4.452m 

5%

Highways & 
Transport, 
£1.950m

2%

Corporate & 
Democratic Core, 

£2.027m
2%

Non Distributed 
Costs, £3.030m

3%

Government 
Payments for 

Benefits,
£45.427m

53%

Council Tax 
Payers, 

£12.642m
15%

Business Rates, 
£3.888m

4%

Sales, Fees 
& Charges, 
£12.206m

14%

Income from 
Central 

Government, 
£6.526m

7%

Other Specific 
Government 

Grants, 
£2.720m

3%

Non Government 
Grants and 

Contributions, 
£1.420m 

2%

Share of Receipts 
from former 

Council 
Dwellings, 
£1.059m

1%
Interest & 

Investment 
Income, 
£0.594

1%

Page 14



Capital Expenditure:

Capital spending

Capital Expenditure is long term investments made by the council on upgrading and improving assets 
such as buildings and purchasing vehicles.  The following table outlines the capital expenditure incurred 
during 2014/15:

Type Description
2014/15

Actual 
£’000

Finance & Corporate 
Services

Council-wide projects
Information technology systems

301 
208

Total Finance and Corporate Services 509
Economy Affordable Housing

Buildings at Risk
453

8
Total Economy 461

Communities Area Committee projects
Market Town Visions
Other communities projects
Market House, Castle Cary

99 
62
51
12

Total Communities 224
Environment Disabled Facilities Grants

Enhancements & Adoption to Council buildings
Car Parks Enhancements
Empty property & HMO grants & home repairs assistance 
Other Environement Projects
Burial projects
Loan Scheme for Somerset
Dealing with Flooding Aftermath
Birchfield Sewer Pollution, Yeovil

611
399 
290
242
141

57
50
30

2
Total Environment 1,822

Health & Well-being Yeovil Country Park Projects
Sports Grants 
Community play schemes and Youth Facilties
Octagon Theatre
Grants for parishes with play areas
Multi Use Games Area
Golderstones & Wincanton Sports Centre 10 Years Plan
Synthetic Grass Hockey Pitch

342
131
116
59
55
45
31

5
Total Health & Well-being 784
Total Capital spend in 2014/15 3,800
Note: Explanation of individual projects is available if required

Capital expenditure was financed from:
£’000

Capital Receipts
Capital Fund
Capital grants from non government funding partners
Capital grants from central government

1,938 
803
604
455

Gross Capital spend in 2014/15 3,800

Page 15



What are we worth:

Council Tax facts and figures:

SSDC’s worth

What the Council owns and is owed: 
Net Assets 31 March 2015

£’000
Buildings, Land and Equipment owned by the Council
Stock
Cash in Bank and Investments
Money owed to the Council (Long and Short-term Debtors)
Money owed by the Council (Creditors, Provisions, Finance 
Leases and Developers Contributions)
Money owed by the Council relating to the Pension Scheme

59,510
90

48,429
5,731

(10,658)

(80,302)
Total Assets less total Liabilities 22,800

What SSDC is Worth: 31 March 2015
£’000

Usable Reserves
Unusable Reserves
Pensions Reserve

52,720
50,382

(80,302)
Total Reserves and Balances 22,800

(items in brackets represent council liabilities)

At the end of the year 
we draw up a balance 
sheet that shows how 
much SSDC’s land 
and buildings are 
worth, what is owed 
to others, what others 
owe us and how much 
cash we have.

Usable Reserves 
are those that can 
be applied to fund 
expenditure or 
reduce local taxation.  
Unusable Reserves 
are for technical 
adjustments for 
non-current assets, 
financial instruments, 
retirement and 
employee benefits.

Description 2013/14 2014/15
Population of South Somerset
Collection of Council Tax in year
Value of Direct Debits
% Collected by Direct Debit

163,900
97.40%

£64.871m
76.73%

164,600
97.03%

£67.109m
77.73%

As a precepting (billing) 
authority we have to collect 
Council Tax on behalf of 
Somerset County Council, 
Avon & Somerset Police, 
Devon & Somerset Fire 
& Rescue and the Parish 
Councils within our district 
(we have no control 
over these authorities’ 
expenditure).  The most 
economical way of 
collecting this is by Direct 
Debit.

Statement from Assistant Director, Finance & Corporate Services
The council’s Statement of Accounts has been prepared in accordance with the Accounting Code of 
Practice and has received an unqualified opinion.  The figures in this summary were compiled having 
regard to proper accounting practices

Somerset 
County 
Council, 

£57.673m
69%

Avon & 
Somerset 

Police, 
£9.621m

11%

South 
Somerset 

District 
Council, 
£8.463m

10%

Devon & 
Somerset Fire 

& Rescue, 
£4.317m

5%

Parishes, 
£4.049m

5%

Page 16



 2014/15 Audit Findings Report 

Strategic Director: Rina Singh and Vega Sturgess, Interim Chief Executives 
Assistant Director: Donna Parham, Finance and Corporate Services 
Lead Officer: Donna Parham, Finance and Corporate Services 

 
Contact Details: Donna.Parham@southsomerset.gov.uk or 01935 462225 

 
 
Purpose of the Report 
 
This report introduces Grant Thornton’s Audit Findings Report for 2014/15. 
 
Recommendation(s) 
 

1. That the Audit Committee considers the matters raised in the report; 
 

2. Note the audit findings as outlined in Section two of this report; 
 

3. Note the Value for Money criteria has been met; 
 

4. Agree the recommended actions in Appendix A. 
 
  

Background 
 
Under the International Standard on Auditing, Grant Thornton report on the overall financial 
statements and governance of South Somerset District Council.  The review of these reports 
is included within the remit of Grant Thornton under its terms of reference as follows: 
 
“To consider the reports of external audit including the Annual Audit Letter and seek 
assurance from management that action has been taken” 
 
“To review and approve the annual Statement of Accounts, external auditor’s opinion and 
reports to members and monitor management action in response to issues raised” 

 
The Report 
 
The report summarises the findings from the 2014/15 work of Grant Thornton UK LLP 
relating to governance. It covers the following areas: 
 
The Statement of Accounts/Annual Governance Statement 
 
The Grant Thornton report gives an unqualified opinion on the financial statements for 
2014/15. It also outlines that in all material respects the Council has complied with the 
requirements of IFRS (International Financial Reporting Standards), which were introduced 
for the 2010/11 accounts.  
 
The report outlines one adjusted misclassification, one presentation issue, and a number of 
minor disclosure and presentation adjustments required.  
 
The Action plan agreed by officers is attached at Appendix A. 
  
Value for Money 

Page 17

Agenda Item 7



 
Grant Thornton is required to make a statement on whether the authority has made 
arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources. 
This is now measured by two criteria as follows: 
 

 Securing financial resilience; 

 Challenge economy, efficiency and effectiveness. 
 
Grant Thornton has assessed arrangements at SSDC meet the criteria. Overall risk criteria 
show the authority as having adequate arrangements (green). There are two sub categories 
highlighted as adequate arrangements with areas for development (amber) outlined on page 
25. 
 
Fees 
 
The fees charged for the audit of the Statement of Accounts were £65,701. 
 
Financial Implications 
 
There are no additional financial implications associated with these recommendations.   
 
 
 

Page 18



© 2015 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Audit Findings Report  |  South Somerset District Council  |  September 2015

The Audit Findings

for South Somerset District Council

Year ended 31 March 2015

Elizabeth Cave
Director
T +44 (0)117 305 7885
E liz.a.cave@uk.gt.com

Ashley J Allen
Manager
T +44 (0)117 305 7629
E ashley.j.allen@uk.gt.com

Harriet Goddard
Executive
T +44 (0)117 305 7748
E harriet.goddard@uk.gt.com

21 September 2015

P
age 19



© 2015 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Audit Findings Report  |  South Somerset District Council  |  September 2015 2

Chartered Accountants
Grant Thornton UK LLP is a limited liability partnership registered in England and Wales: No.OC307742. Registered office: Grant Thornton House, Melton Street, Euston Square, London NW1 2EP.
A list of members is available from our registered office. Grant Thornton UK LLP is authorised and regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority.
Grant Thornton UK LLP is a member firm of Grant Thornton International Ltd (GTIL). GTIL and the member firms are not a worldwide partnership. Services are delivered by the member firms. GTIL and
its member firms are not agents of, and do not obligate, one another and are not liable for one another’s acts or omissions. Please see grant-thornton.co.uk for further details.

This Audit Findings report highlights the significant findings arising from the audit for the benefit of those charged with governance (in the case of South Somerset District 
Council, the Audit Committee), as required by International Standard on Auditing (UK & Ireland) 260. Its contents will be discussed with the Audit Committee. 

As auditors we are responsible for performing the audit, in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK & Ireland), which is directed towards forming and 
expressing an opinion on the financial statements that have been prepared by management with the oversight of those charged with governance. The audit of the financial 
statements does not relieve management or those charged with governance of their responsibilities for the preparation of the financial statements.

The contents of this report relate only to those matters which came to our attention during the conduct of our normal audit procedures which are designed primarily for the 
purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements. Our audit is not designed to test all internal controls or identify all areas of control weakness. However, 
where, as part of our testing, we identify any control weaknesses, we will report these to you. In consequence, our work cannot be relied upon to disclose defalcations or 
other irregularities, or to include all possible improvements in internal control that a more extensive special examination might identify. We do not accept any responsibility 
for any loss occasioned to any third party acting, or refraining from acting on the basis of the content of this report, as this report was not prepared for, nor intended for, 
any other purpose.

We would like to take this opportunity to record our appreciation for the kind assistance provided by the finance team and other staff during our audit.

Yours sincerely

Elizabeth Cave
Director

Grant Thornton UK LLP 
Hartwell House
55-61 Victoria Street
Bristol BS1 6FT

T +44 (0)117 305 7600
www.grant-thornton.co.uk 

21 September 2015

Dear Audit Committee members

Audit Findings for South Somerset District Council for the year ending 31 March 2015

South Somerset District Council
Brympton Way
Yeovil
Somerset
BA20 2HT

P
age 20



© 2015 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Audit Findings Report  |  South Somerset District Council  |  September 2015 3

Contents

Section Page

1. Executive summary 5

2. Audit findings 8

3. Value for Money 20

4. Fees, non-audit services and independence 27

5. Communication of audit matters 29

Appendices

A Action plan 31

B  Audit opinion 32

P
age 21



© 2015 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Audit Findings Report  |  South Somerset District Council  |  September 2015

Section 1: Executive summary

01. Executive summary

02. Audit findings

03. Value for Money

04. Fees, non-audit services and independence

05. Communication of audit matters

P
age 22



© 2015 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Audit Findings Report  |  South Somerset District Council  |  September 2015 5

Executive summary

Executive summary

Purpose of this report
This report highlights the key matters arising from our audit of South Somerset 
District Council's (the Council's) financial statements for the year ended 31 March 
2015. It is also used to report our audit findings to management and those charged 
with governance in accordance with the requirements of International Standard on 
Auditing 260 (ISA UK&I). 

Under the Audit Commission's Code of Audit Practice we are required to report 
whether, in our opinion, the Council's financial statements present a true and fair 
view of the financial position and expenditure and income for the year and 
whether they have been properly prepared in accordance with the CIPFA Code of 
Practice on Local Authority Accounting. We are also required to reach a formal 
conclusion on whether the Council has put in place proper arrangements to secure 
economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources (the Value for Money 
conclusion).

Introduction

In the conduct of our audit we have not had to alter or change our planned audit 
approach, which we communicated to you in our Audit Plan which we 
communicated to you on 25 March 2015 except in relation to our strategy for 
welfare expenditure.

Our audit is substantially complete although we are finalising our work in the 
following areas: 
• review of the final version of the financial statements
• obtaining and reviewing the final management letter of representation
• review of final version of the Annual Governance Statement

• updating our post balance sheet events review, to the date of signing the 
opinion

• Whole of Government Accounts

We received draft financial statements and accompanying working papers at the 
start of our audit, in accordance with the agreed timetable.

Key issues arising from our audit

Financial statements opinion

We anticipate providing an unqualified opinion in respect of  the financial 
statements. 

The key messages arising from our audit of the Council's financial statements 
are:
• the Council included the additional disclosures that we suggested during the 

audit and made some presentation and disclosure adjustments
• the financial statements were supported by a high standard of working 

papers in accordance with the agreed timetable supported by excellent 
assistance from the finance team

We have not identified any adjustment  affecting the Council's reported 
financial position but we identified a number of adjustments to improve the 
presentation of the financial statements.

Further details are set out in section two of this report.

P
age 23



© 2015 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Audit Findings Report  |  South Somerset District Council  |  September 2015 6

Executive summary

Value for Money conclusion

We are pleased to report that, based on our review of the Council's arrangements 
to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources, we propose 
to give an unqualified VfM conclusion

Further detail of our work on Value for Money is set out in section three of this 
report.

Whole of Government Accounts (WGA)

We will complete our work in respect of the Whole of Government Accounts in 
accordance with the national timetable.

Controls

Roles and responsibilities

The Council's management is responsible for the identification, assessment, 
management and monitoring of risk, and for developing, operating and monitoring 
the system of internal control.

Our audit is not designed to test all internal controls or identify all areas of control 
weakness.  However, where, as part of our testing, we identify any control 
weaknesses, we  report these to the Council. 

Findings

We draw your attention in particular to control issues identified in relation to:
• refreshing the IT security policy which was a finding in 2013/14
• administrators of the Northgate Revenues and Benefits system not being 

informed of leavers 

Further details are provided within section two of this report.

The way forward

Matters arising from the financial statements audit and review of the Council's 
arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of 
resources have been discussed with the Assistant Director – Finance and 
Corporate Services.

We have made a number of recommendations, which are set out in the action 
plan in Appendix A. Recommendations have been discussed and agreed with 
the Assistant Director – Finance and Corporate Services and the finance team.

Acknowledgment

We would like to take this opportunity to record our appreciation for the 
assistance provided by the finance team and other staff during our audit.

Grant Thornton UK LLP

September 2015

P
age 24



© 2015 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Audit Findings Report  |  South Somerset District Council  |  September 2015

Section 2: Audit findings

01. Executive summary

02. Audit findings

03. Value for Money

04. Fees, non-audit services and independence

05. Communication of audit matters

P
age 25



© 2015 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Audit Findings Report  |  South Somerset District Council  |  September 2015 8

Audit findings

Audit findings

In this section we present our findings in respect of matters and risks identified at 
the planning stage of the audit and additional matters that arose during the course 
of our work. We set out on the following pages the work we have performed and 
the findings arising from our work in respect of the audit risks we identified in our 
audit plan, presented to the Audit Committee on 25 March 2015.  We also set out 
the adjustments to the financial statements arising from our audit work and our 
findings in respect of internal controls.

Changes to Audit Plan

We have not made any changes to our Audit Plan as previously communicated to 
you on 25 March 2015 except in relation to our strategy for welfare expenditure. 
We have decided that welfare expenditure is not a risk to our audit and therefore ir
has been tested as a material item of expenditure.

Audit opinion

Our proposed audit opinion is set out in Appendix B.

P
age 26



© 2015 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Audit Findings Report  |  South Somerset District Council  |  September 2015 9

Audit findings against significant risks

Risks identified in our audit plan Work completed Assurance gained and issues arising

1. Improper revenue recognition

Under ISA (UK&I) 240 there is a presumed 
risk that revenue may be misstated due to 
improper recognition 

Having considered the risk factors set out in ISA240 and the 
nature of the revenue streams at South Somerset District 
Council, we have determined that the risk of fraud arising 
from revenue recognition can be rebutted, because:

� there is little incentive to manipulate revenue recognition

� opportunities to manipulate revenue recognition are very 
limited

� the culture and ethical frameworks of local authorities, 
including South Somerset District Council, mean that all 
forms of fraud are seen as unacceptable

Our audit work has not identified any issues in respect of 
revenue recognition.

2. Management override of controls

Under ISA (UK&I) 240 there is a presumed 
risk of management over-ride of controls

� review of prior year and current year accounting 
estimates, judgements and decisions made by 
management

� testing of journal entries

� review of unusual significant transactions

Our audit work has not identified any evidence of 
management override of controls. In particular the findings 
of our review of journal controls and testing of journal 
entries has not identified any significant issues other than 
that discussed below.

When completing our testing of journals, the Council was 
not able to provide us with supporting documentation for 
one journal that we selected for testing. We are satisfied  
that the reason for the journal is sound. The purpose of the 
journal was just to add a job code, not to transfer money 
however all journals need to have documentation. We 
have made a recommendation around this in the action 
plan.

We set out later in this section of the report our work and 
findings on key accounting estimates and judgments. 

Audit findings

"Significant risks often relate to significant non-routine transactions and judgmental matters. Non-routine transactions are transactions that are unusual, either due to size 
or nature, and that therefore occur infrequently. Judgmental matters may include the development of accounting estimates for which there is significant measurement 
uncertainty" (ISA (UK&I) 315). 

In this section we detail our response to the significant risks of material misstatement which we identified in the Audit Plan.  As we noted in our plan, there are two 
presumed significant risks which are applicable to all audits under auditing standards.

P
age 27



© 2015 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Audit Findings Report  |  South Somerset District Council  |  September 2015 10

Audit findings against other risks

Transaction cycle Description of risk Work completed Assurance gained & issues arising

Operating expenses Creditors understated or not 
recorded in the correct period 
(operating expenses 
understated)

� review of system documentation and walkthrough test of design 
and operation of controls

� search for unrecorded liabilities by testing after period payments

� obtain an understanding of the accruals process and determine 
whether our understanding identifies areas where additional 
procedures are required

� will obtain written representations from management for 
significant assumptions used in estimates

Our audit work has not identified any significant 
issues in relation to the risk identified.

Employee 
remuneration

Employee remuneration 
accrual understated 
(remuneration expenses not 
correct)

� review system documentation and walkthrough test of design 
and operation of controls

� analytical procedures over the payroll figures throughout the year 
to ensure that it is reasonable and complete

� substantive testing of a sample of payroll payments

� review reconciliation of the payroll system figures to the general 
ledger figures

Our audit work has not identified any significant 
issues in relation to the risk identified.

Audit findings

In this section we detail our response to the other risks of material misstatement which we identified in the Audit Plan.  Recommendations, together with management 
responses, are attached at Appendix A.

P
age 28



© 2015 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Audit Findings Report  |  South Somerset District Council  |  September 2015 11

Transaction cycle Description of risk Work completed Assurance gained & issues arising

Welfare expenditure Welfare benefits expenditure 
improperly computed

� review system documentation and walkthrough test of design and 
operation of controls

� substantive testing of a sample of welfare claims

� verify system parameters

� analytical procedures over the welfare expenditure to ensure that 
it is reasonable

� complete uprating checklist

� review reconciliation of the housing benefit system to the general 
ledger

� agree housing benefit claim to the accounts

Our audit work has not identified any significant 
issues in relation to the risk identified.

Transfer of business
rates from Civica to 
Northgate

Towards the end of 2014/15 
the Council changed software 
systems for business rates

� IT specialists reviewed the systems of the Council and had 
discussions regarding the change to Northgate

We have identified one weakness in the controls 
regarding the administrators of the Northgate 
system not being informed about leavers. This is 
discussed further on page 16 of this report. Our 
audit work has not identified any other significant 
issues in relation to the risk identified.

Audit findings

P
age 29



© 2015 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Audit Findings Report  |  South Somerset District Council  |  September 2015 12

Accounting area Summary of policy Comments Assessment

Revenue recognition Activity is accounted for in the year that it takes place, not simply when cash 
payments are received. In particular:

� Fees, charges and rents due from customers are accounted for as 
income at the date the Council provides the relevant goods or services.

� Interest receivable on investments is accounted for on the basis of the 
effective interest rate for the relevant financial instrument rather than the 
cash flows fixed or determined by the contract.

� Where income has been recognised but cash has not been received, a 
debtor for the relevant amount is recorded in the balance sheet. Where it 
is doubtful that debts will be settled, the balance of debtors is written 
down and a charge is made to revenue for the income that might not be 
collected.

� Income is credited to the relevant revenue account, unless they properly 
represent capital receipts.

We have reviewed the Council's recognition of revenue 
and found that:

� Appropriate policies had been used

� Accounting policies had been adequately disclosed. 

� Revenue had been appropriately recognised

� The policies are in accordance with proper 
practices as set out in the CIPFA/ LASAAC Code of 
Practice

�
Green

Accounting policies, estimates & judgements

Assessment
� Red – Marginal accounting policy which could potentially attract attention from regulators      � Amber – Accounting policy appropriate but scope for improved disclosure
� Green – Accounting policy appropriate and disclosures sufficient

Audit findings

In this section we report on our consideration of accounting policies, in particular revenue recognition policies,  and key estimates and judgements made and included with the Council's 

financial statements.  

P
age 30



© 2015 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Audit Findings Report  |  South Somerset District Council  |  September 2015 13

Accounting policies, estimates & judgements continued

Accounting area Summary of policy Comments Assessment

Estimates and 
judgements 

Key estimates and judgements include:

� useful life of property, plant and equipment

� pension fund valuations and settlements

� revaluations and impairments

� provisions

� accruals

We have reviewed the accounting areas where the 
Council has exercised judgement and used estimates. 
We found that:

� Appropriate policies had been used

� Accounting policies had been adequately disclosed. 
We advised management to include additional 
disclosure of critical judgments relating to business 
rates appeals provision and Lufton 2000 as a joint 
venture or joint operation, which are included in the 
final version of the accounts.

� Areas where judgement had been used were 
supported by the work of an expert or a third party

�
Green

Going concern The officers have a reasonable expectation that the services provided by the 
Council will  continue for the foreseeable future.  For this reason, they 
continue to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the financial 
statements.

We have reviewed the assessment and are satisfied 
with managements' assessment that the going concern 
basis is appropriate for the 2014/15 financial 
statements.

�
Green

Other accounting 
policies

We have reviewed the Council's policies against the requirements of the 
CIPFA Code and accounting standards.

Our review of accounting policies has not highlighted 
any issues which we wish to bring to your attention 
other than those that have been highlighted in this 
report. A small number of minor amendments were 
made to the presentation of the accounting policies 
including Local Government Pension Scheme, 
Financial Instruments and a note on accounting 
standards that have been issued but not yet adopted 
was inserted in the final version of the accounts.

�
Green

Audit findings

Assessment
� Red – Marginal accounting policy which could potentially attract attention from regulators      � Amber – Accounting policy appropriate but scope for improved disclosure
� Green – Accounting policy appropriate and disclosures sufficient

P
age 31



© 2015 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Audit Findings Report  |  South Somerset District Council  |  September 2015 14

Accounting policies, Estimates & Judgements– review of  issues raised in prior 

year
Assessment Issue and risk previously communicated Update on actions taken to address the issue

1. X Estimates and judgements - Property, Plant & Equipment

In previous years the Council carried out a rolling programme of revaluations. This 
approach was similar to many other authorities.

However, in our view this rolling programme did not meet the Code's requirement to 
value items within a class of property , plant and equipment simultaneously, as this 
Code requirement, which is based on IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment, only 
permits a class of assets to be revalued on a rolling basis provided that:

• the revaluation of the class of assets is completed within a ‘short period’
• the revaluations are kept up to date.

In our view,  we would normally expect this ‘short period’ to be within a single 
financial year. This is because the purpose of simultaneous valuations is to ‘avoid 
reporting a mixture of costs and values as at different dates’. This purpose is not 
met where a revaluation programme for a class of assets straddles more than one 
financial year.

The council has continued with its existing rolling programme and 
considers this to be appropriate, since the valuer is also provided 
with the full fixed asset register so that he can consider whether 
there are any assets not on the revaluation programme which would 
need to be revalued according to his specialist knowledge of current 
market conditions.

The latest valuation date is 1 April 2014 i.e. a year before the 
balance sheet date it relates to. Other valuations are between a 
year and four years older than that. The Council's valuer has 
advised that there are no significant changes in values of assets 
values in prior years. The Council has relied on his professional 
opinion which we consider is reasonable. However, in future years 
the valuer should be asked to consider this point in more detail to 
demonstrate that the carrying value of PPE based on valuations in 
prior years is not materially misstated.

The Council has recognised that not revaluing whole classes of 
assets within one year is a departure from the Code, although the 
Council has applied a systematic basis to revaluing its assets. We 
have again made a recommendation in this area within the action 
plan in the appendices to this report.

Audit findings

Assessment
� Action completed
X Not yet addressed

P
age 32



© 2015 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Audit Findings Report  |  South Somerset District Council  |  September 2015 15

Other communication requirements

Issue Commentary

1. Matters in relation to fraud We have previously discussed the risk of fraud with the Audit Committee and have not been made aware of any frauds that would have a 
material impact on the financial statements. We have not been made aware of any other incidents in the period and no other issues have 
been identified during the course of our audit.

2. Matters in relation to laws and 
regulations

We are not aware of any significant incidences of non-compliance with relevant laws and regulations.

3. Written representations A standard letter of representation has been requested from the Council.

4. Disclosures Our review found no non-trivial omissions in the financial statements.

5. Matters in relation to related 
parties

We are not aware of any related party transactions which have not been disclosed. We advised management to disclose the nature of 
the Council's relationship with South West Audit Partnership and Somerset Waste Partnership. This has been included in the related 
party transactions note in the final version of the accounts.

6. Confirmation requests from 
third parties 

We requested from management permission to send confirmation requests to external bodies for bank and investment balances. This 
permission was granted and the requests were sent. All of these requests were returned with positive confirmation.

Audit findings

We set out below details of other matters which we are required by auditing standards to communicate to those charged with governance.

P
age 33



© 2015 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Audit Findings Report  |  South Somerset District Council  |  September 2015 16

Internal controls

The purpose of an audit is to express an opinion on the financial statements.

Our audit included consideration of internal controls relevant to the preparation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in 
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control. We considered and walked through the internal controls 
for Employee Remuneration, Operating Expenses and welfare expenditure as set out on page 10 and 11 above. 

The matters that we identified during the course of our audit  are set out in the table below. These and other recommendations, together with management responses, 
are included in the action plan attached at Appendix A.

Assessment Issue and risk Recommendations

1.
�

Amber

A monthly report of leavers is provided by HR and circulated 
to IT and Finance system administrators but this does not 
include the system administrators for the Northgate Revenues 
and Benefits system.

This leaves the potential for accounts belonging to terminated 
employees to remain enabled within the system. 

The report showing leavers should be circulated to the Revenues and Benefits system 
administrators.

Audit findings

Assessment
� Red – Significant deficiency – risk of significant misstatement
� Amber – Deficiency – risk of inconsequential misstatement

The matters reported here are limited to those deficiencies that we have identified during the course of our audit and that we have concluded are of sufficient 
importance to merit being reported to you in accordance with auditing standards.

P
age 34



© 2015 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Audit Findings Report  |  South Somerset District Council  |  September 2015 17

Assessment Issue and risk previously communicated Update on actions taken to address the issue

1. 
�

Payroll suspense accounts are not routinely checked and 
reconciled. Control is intended to operate on a monthly basis. 
As at 4 Feb, three reconciliations had been completed (27 June 
and 2 September 2013, and 14 January 2014).

Recommendation:
The Council should regularly reconcile its payroll control 
accounts.

The payroll accounts were not regularly reconciled in the first half of the year as this was 
prior to our recommendation coming from our audit findings report for the prior year. The 
recommendation was implemented by the Council in September 2014 and the accounts 
have been regularly reconciled.

2.
�

Documentation and evidence supporting reconciliations to bank 
statements could be improved, particularly for the Main 
Account. We noted small discrepancies between the hardcopy 
and electronic reconciliations, and trivial unreconciled amounts 
due to timing issues.

Recommendation:
The Council should enhance the supporting evidence for the 
reconciliation of bank statements.

Bank reconciliations performed for the 2014/15 financial year for all accounts were tested 
during the audit. No discrepancies were identified and appropriate supporting evidence to 
support the reconciliations was provided.

3. X The Council has a large number of IT Security Policies some of 
which were last refreshed in 2011 and have not been subject to 
regular review. Without regular review, there is a risk that the 
policies and related procedures are no longer applicable to the 
needs and security requirements of the business, which may 
compromise the organisation's computing environment. This 
was also raised as a finding in 2012/13.

Recommendation
We recommend that management carries out a refresh of the IT 
Security policies at least every 3 years and more frequently as 
required to take into account new technology advances and 
cyber related threats.

The Council still does not have an up to date IT security policy and therefore we still have 
a recommendation for this item in the action plan in the appendices.

Internal controls – review of  issues raised in prior year

Audit findings

Assessment
� Action completed
X Not yet addressed

P
age 35



© 2015 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Audit Findings Report  |  South Somerset District Council  |  September 2015 18

Misclassifications & disclosure changes

Audit findings

Adjustment type Value

£'000

Account balance Impact on the financial statements

1 Misclassification 1,995 Central services income to 
taxation and non-specific 

grant income

Income from New Homes Bonus grant was partially recorded in central service 
income when it should have all been disclosed as taxation and non-specific grant 

income

2 Presentation N/A Note 16 for Intangible 
Assets

Gross carrying amounts at end of year was revised from £279k to £571k and 
accumulated amortisation at end of year was revised from £142k to £434k. This 

was a presentational issue and did not affect the carrying value of intangible assets. 

3 Disclosure/ 
presentation

N/A Various Whilst we acknowledge the work undertaken by the Council to prepare the Annual 
Governance Statement and financial statements for our review, there were a 

number of minor disclosure and presentational adjustments that were required to 
be made to the drafts presented for audit.

The table below provides details of misclassification and disclosure changes identified during the audit which have been made in the final set of financial statements. 

P
age 36



© 2015 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Audit Findings Report  |  South Somerset District Council  |  September 2015

Section 3: Value for Money

01. Executive summary

02. Audit findings

03. Value for Money

04. Fees, non-audit services and independence

05. Communication of audit matters

P
age 37



© 2015 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Audit Findings Report  |  South Somerset District Council  |  September 2015 20

Value for Money 

Value for Money

Value for money conclusion

The Code of Audit Practice 2010 (the Code) describes the Council's 
responsibilities to put in place proper arrangements to:
• secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources;
• ensure proper stewardship and governance; and
• review regularly the adequacy and effectiveness of these arrangements.

We are required to give our VfM conclusion based on two criteria specified by the 
Audit Commission which support our reporting responsibilities under the Code. 

These criteria are:
The Council has proper arrangements in place for securing financial 

resilience - the Council has robust systems and processes to manage effectively 
financial risks and opportunities, and to secure a stable financial position that 
enables it to continue to operate for the foreseeable future.

The Council has proper arrangements for challenging how it secures 

economy, efficiency and effectiveness - the Council is prioritising its resources 
within tighter budgets, for example by achieving cost reductions and by improving 
efficiency and productivity.

Key findings

Securing financial resilience

We have undertaken a review which considered the Council's arrangements against 
the three expected characteristics of proper arrangements as defined by the Audit 
Commission:
• Financial governance;
• Financial planning; and
• Financial control.

Overall our work highlighted that the Council has managed its finances effectively.  
It has relatively high levels of reserves (as a percentage of gross expenditure) and it 
has managed its expenditure to achieve an underspend against its original budget, 
while delivering its savings targets.

There has been a deterioration in Council Tax collection rates and the Council has 
undertaken appropriate action to address this through increased staff capacity. 
Further the Council's Medium Term Financial Plan has gaps in future years for 
identified savings and there is a potential over reliance on a single source of 
income. The Council's plans for 2016/17 are well advanced. There is currently a 
more significant gap for 2017/18 and plans for that year will be based on the new 
corporate plan.

Challenging economy, efficiency and effectiveness

We have considered the Council's arrangements to challenge economy, efficiency 
and effectiveness against the following themes:
• Prioritising resources
• Improving efficiency & productivity

We have reviewed whether the Council has prioritised its resources to take account 
of the tighter constraints within which it is required to operate. The Council 
monitors performance especially where there has been service redesign to ensure 
that the Council is still achieving its targets.

Overall VfM conclusion

On the basis of our work, and having regard to the guidance on the specified 
criteria published by the Audit Commission, we are satisfied that in all significant 
respects the Council has put in place proper arrangements to secure economy, 
efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources for the year ending 31 March 
2015.

P
age 38



© 2015 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Audit Findings Report  |  South Somerset District Council  |  September 2015 21

Value for Money

Theme Summary findings RAG rating

Key indicators of performance The Council's working capital ratio (current assets divided by current liabilities) has reduced to 7.1 in 2014/15 
compared to 10.5 in 2013/14. This is because the Council has continued to reinvest again in long term investments 
whilst reducing cash balances. There has also been an increase in short term creditors leading to the reduced ratio.

The Council has achieved significant underspends against its original and revised budgets in each of the past seven 
years. The original estimate in each of the past five years have been a more accurate predictor that the revised 
estimate of the final outturn.

The Council has relatively high levels of usable reserves (60% of gross revenue expenditure. However, most of this 
balance £36.4m relates to capital receipts and capital grants which cannot be used to support day to day revenue 
expenditure.

Days lost due to sickness at South Somerset had been consistently lower than the local government average over the 
period but there was a significant increase in 2012/13, due to increased number of days lost to long term sickness.  
This rate has reduced from 11.49 in 2012/13 to 8.87 in 2013/14 and again to 8.57 in 2014/15, although still above the 
Council's target of 8 days.

South Somerset's collection rate for Council Tax in 2013/14 at 97.4% placed the Council in the worst performing third of 
all district councils. In 2014/15, South Somerset's collection rate fell by 0.4% to 97%. The Council's target collection 
rate is low at 97%. The Council is currently reporting performance on Council Tax collection as green.

Overall, the Council's below average collection rates for Council tax do not alter the overall green for key indicators of 
performance.

Green

The table below and overleaf summarises our overall rating for each of the themes reviewed:

Green Adequate arrangements

Amber Adequate arrangements, with areas for development

Red Inadequate arrangements

We set out below our detailed findings against six risk areas which have been used to assess the Council's performance against the Audit Commission's criteria. We 
summarise our assessment of each risk area using a red, amber or green (RAG) rating, based on the following definitions:

P
age 39



© 2015 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Audit Findings Report  |  South Somerset District Council  |  September 2015 22

Value for Money

Theme Summary findings RAG rating

Strategic financial planning The Council annually produces a five-year Medium Term Financial Plan (MTFP). The MTFP covers financial issues that 
the Council will face during the five year period. The Council has developed a strategy for dealing with the financial 
difficulties it is facing which include:

• Making annual savings

• Managed use of balances

• Partial use of new homes bonus

• Council tax increase

• Growth in business rates

The current MTFP to Council in February shows a budget gap of almost £1.7m in 2016/17. At the same time last year 
(September 2014) the budget gap for 2015/16 had been £1m. The Council was able to close that budget gap for 
2015/16, and it is anticipated that the current gap for 2016/17 will also be addressed. 

The Council continues to work to identify future savings and income generation opportunities and is confident that these 
will address the funding gap. The funding gaps are also noted for future years and it is considered that there is a 
potential over reliance on one source of funding through the New Homes Bonus.

Green

Financial governance The Management Board and District Executive clearly understand the financial environment in which they operate and 
there is regular communication with members regarding key changes to the financial environment such as localisation 
of Council tax benefits and the pooling of business rates.

The Medium Term Financial Plan and financial updates clearly set out the financial pressures facing the Council.

There is strong officer and member involvement in the budget setting process. Budget workshops are held as part of 
the process and include officers, members and external stakeholders. 

There is regular budget reporting to the Management Board (monthly) and to the District Executive (quarterly).  Reports 
show the original budget, revised budget and year end forecast for each service with an explanation of any variance. 
There are regular updates on budget virements and progress on major savings (with a report at the end of the year 
detailing the savings that have been achieved).

In 2014/15 the Council reported that it had underspent on its original budget by £1m and its revised budget by £1,4m. 
This shows that the original budget has been a more accurate forecast  than the revised budget of the final outturn in 
each of  the past five years.

Green

P
age 40



© 2015 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Audit Findings Report  |  South Somerset District Council  |  September 2015 23

Value for Money

Theme Summary findings RAG rating

Financial control In June 2015 the Council reported  that there was a shortfall of £32k on the £691K planned savings and that it had 
underspent on its original budget by £1m and its revised budget by £1.4m. The Council has a cumulative shortfall of 
£253k over the past three years.

The Council reports on the delivery of its savings plans so that they can be monitored in addition to the overall 
budgetary position.

Internal Audit has completed its work programme and  concluded that  it could "…offer reasonable assurance in respect 
of areas reviewed during the year as most were found to be adequately controlled. Generally risks are well managed 
but some areas require the introduction or improvement of internal controls to ensure the achievement of objectives…."

The outturn position for 2014/15 shows that assets are steady, short term investments have increased as have short 
term creditors. This demonstrates that the Council has not required the sale of assets to meet shortfalls and although 
the increase in creditor levels is not ideal it is something that the Council can address in order to rectify. Further based 
on review of documents to monitor savings there has been no requirement for planning as a result  of not delivering 
savings and therefore putting the delivery of statutory services at risk.

Green

Prioritising resources The Council has challenged delivery methods and considered alternative options, working with local authorities and 
other organisations for alternative ways of delivering services such as community and leisure trusts, and joint provision 
of services across local authorities.

It has identified economic development as a key priority and  invested in officer support to enable the Council  to 
increase its impact in this area.

The Management Board has carried out cross cutting reviews as well  as LEAN service reviews and has completed a 
review of service delivery with a view to implementing new processes to provided ongoing savings.

There are 4 areas for the Council to review and develop with the objective of  significant savings and generation of 
additional income

• income generation

• asset rationalisation

• procurement

• transformation project

The Council has also identified the New Homes Bonus income as a source of funding and has been prudent in its use 
of this income. The amount used to fund the revenue budget has been capped at £3m per year which provides a safety 
net over the next two years and a reduced requirement in the third year should this be removed. It is planned that the 
excess be invested in income generating projects to ensure revenue is maximised within the Council.

Green

P
age 41



© 2015 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Audit Findings Report  |  South Somerset District Council  |  September 2015 24

Value for Money

Theme Summary findings RAG rating

Improving efficiency & productivity The Council has adequate arrangements to monitor the implementation of spending reductions through regular budget 
monitoring and actions.  There is evidence of how  the Council monitors performance of services to ensure that  
reductions in spending don't adversely impact on Council priorities

There are examples of joint working with other local authorities on Environmental Health and Licensing - delivering 
savings and service resilience.  

One of the most significant partnerships for South Somerset is the Waste Partnership and the Council has provided 
examples of how joint working and innovative ways of working with partners has reduced costs or improved services 
than had the Council worked alone. The Council continues to monitor this partnership and are looking to identify further 
options that will result in greater savings in conjunction with their partners.

The LEAN process has generated significant savings from the redesign of services and the Council has monitored the 
impact of these changes on service delivery.

The Council monitors key indicators of performance and benchmarks against prior year performance and targets for the 
financial year. This is an area that could be reviewed further as some practices identified, such as the reduction of the 
Council Tax collection rate target, could give a false impression of performance in the year and on a year on year on 
basis. 

Green

P
age 42



© 2015 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Audit Findings Report  |  South Somerset District Council  |  September 2015 25

Value for Money

To support our VfM conclusion against the specified criteria we performed a risk assessment against VfM risk indicators specified by the Audit Commission. and 
additional indicators identified by ourselves. Following completion of our work we noted the following residual risks to our VfM conclusion:

Residual risk identified Summary findings RAG rating

Key Indicators of Financial 
Performance

2014/15 – Performance against
budgets (revenue capital and 
savings)

Collection rates for CTAX in 2014/15 are 97.04% which is a reduction from the prior year and still below other districts 
both regionally and nationally. The target of 97% is low.

Four extra staff have been recruited to improve collection. Amber

Strategic Financial Planning

Focus of the medium term financial 
plan

Review of MTFP showed that a 3-5 year plan has been considered and has been based on reasonable assumptions. 
There are a number of gaps in future years which have yet to be addressed and no concrete plans have been made to 
identify how the shortfall will be addressed. An income recognition project is under way to identify future revenue 
streams to address some of the gap and following a lean review a transformation project has been agreed and will be 
implemented following member agreement. It is envisaged that savings identified from this process will also cover some 
of the shortfall.

There is a reliance on the new homes bonus (NHB) which is capped within the revenue budget at £3m per year. This 
provides a safety net for a further two years providing the scheme continues as is. There is no indication that there will 
be a change in central government policy although this remains a risk. The safety net is for two years and after this 
other areas of savings / income will need to be identified. It is envisaged that a portion of the 'excess' NHB will be 
invested by members in other projects to help the local economy although this is yet to be confirmed.

The Council' plans for 2016/17 are well advanced however there is currently a more significant gap for 2017/18 and 
plans for that year will be based on the new corporate plan.

Amber

P
age 43



© 2015 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Audit Findings Report  |  South Somerset District Council  |  September 2015

Section 4: Fees, non-audit services and independence

01. Executive summary

02. Audit findings

03. Value for Money

04. Fees, non-audit services and independence

05. Communication of audit matters

P
age 44



© 2015 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Audit Findings Report  |  South Somerset District Council  |  September 2015 27

Fees

Per Audit plan
£

Actual fees 
£

Council audit 65,701 65,701

Grant certification on behalf of 
Audit Commission 13,990 *13,990

Total audit fees 79,691 79,691

Fees, non-audit services and independence

We confirm below our final fees charged for the audit and of non-audit services.

Independence and ethics

We confirm that there are no significant facts or matters that impact on our 
independence as auditors that we are required or wish to draw to your attention. We 
have complied with the Financial Reporting Council's Ethical Standards and 
therefore we confirm that we are independent and are able to express an objective 
opinion on the financial statements.

We confirm that we have implemented policies and procedures to meet the 
requirements of the Auditing Practices Board's Ethical Standards.

Fees for other services

Service Fees £

Non-audit related services

Investors in people accreditation 9,990

*The indicative fee published by the Public Sector Audit 
Appointments for grant certification work required in 
2014/15 for the Council is £13,990. As the work has 
not yet been completed on the grant certification, we 
therefore cannot confirm the final fee.

Fees, non audit services and independence

P
age 45



© 2015 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Audit Findings Report  |  South Somerset District Council  |  September 2015

Section 5: Communication of  audit matters

01. Executive summary

02. Audit findings

03. Value for Money

04. Fees, non-audit services and independence

05. Communication of audit matters

P
age 46



© 2015 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Audit Findings Report  |  South Somerset District Council  |  September 2015 29

Communication of  audit matters to those charged with governance

Our communication plan
Audit 
Plan

Audit 
Findings

Respective responsibilities of auditor and management/those 
charged with governance

�

Overview of the planned scope and timing of the audit. Form, timing 
and expected general content of communications

�

Views about the qualitative aspects  of the entity's accounting and 
financial reporting practices, significant matters and issues arising 
during the audit and written representations that have been sought

�

Confirmation of independence and objectivity � �

A statement that we have complied with relevant ethical 
requirements regarding independence,  relationships and other 
matters which might  be thought to bear on independence. 

Details of non-audit work performed by Grant Thornton UK LLP and 
network firms, together with  fees charged 

Details of safeguards applied to threats to independence

� �

Material weaknesses in internal control identified during the audit �

Identification or suspicion of fraud involving management and/or 
others which results in material misstatement of the financial 
statements

�

Compliance with laws and regulations �

Expected auditor's report �

Uncorrected misstatements �

Significant matters arising in connection with related parties �

Significant matters in relation to going concern �

International Standard on Auditing ISA (UK&) 260, as well as other (UK&I) ISAs, 
prescribe matters which we are required to communicate with those charged with 
governance, and which we set out in the table opposite.  

The Audit Plan outlined our audit strategy and plan to deliver the audit, while this Audit 
Findings report presents the key issues and other matters arising from the audit, together 
with an explanation as to how these have been resolved.

Respective responsibilities

The Audit Findings Report has been prepared in the context of the Statement of 
Responsibilities of Auditors and Audited Bodies issued by the Audit Commission 
(www.audit-commission.gov.uk). 

We have been appointed as the Council's independent external auditors by the Audit 
Commission, the body responsible for appointing external auditors to local public bodies 
in England. As external auditors, we have a broad remit covering finance and 
governance matters. 

Our annual work programme is set in accordance with the Code of Audit Practice (the 
Code) issued by the Audit Commission and includes nationally prescribed and locally 
determined work. Our work considers the Council's key risks when reaching our 
conclusions under the Code. 

It is the responsibility of the Council to ensure that proper arrangements are in place for 
the conduct of its business, and that public money is safeguarded and properly 
accounted for.  We have considered how the Council is fulfilling these responsibilities.

Communication of audit matters

P
age 47



© 2015 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Audit Findings Report  |  South Somerset District Council  |  September 2015 30

Appendices

Appendices

P
age 48



© 2015 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Audit Findings Report  |  South Somerset District Council  |  September 2015 31

Appendix A: Action plan

Priority
High, Medium or Low

Rec
No. Recommendation Priority Management response

Implementation date & 
responsibility

1. The Council should ensure that all assets within the 
same class are valued within the same financial year to 
meet the Code's requirements for revaluing of Property, 
Plant and Equipment in paragraph 4.1.2.35.

Low Agree to finding a mutually acceptable way 
forward to meet the requirement of the Code.

2015/16 Statement of Accounts

Amanda Card, Finance 
Manager 

2. The Council should ensure that supporting 
documentation is retained for all journals posted.

Medium I do not believe that supporting documentation
was required in this case. All journals are 
reviewed monthly by the Principle Accountant –
Revenue Budgets monthly.

Donna Parham, Assistant
Director – Finance and 
Corporate Services

3. We recommend that management carries out a refresh 
of the IT Security policies at least every 3 years and 
more frequently as required to take into account new 
technology advances and cyber related threats.

Medium The policy suite consists of 16 documents of 
which some are out of date. We agree to address
those that are most out of date by the end of this 
financial year.

31st March 2015

Roger Brown, ICT Manager

4. The report showing leavers should be circulated to the 
Revenues and Benefits system administrators.

Medium Agreed Immediate

Mike Holliday, HR Manager

5. Valuations of PPE should be at the balance sheet date 
i.e. 31 March 2015 not 1 April 2014. The Council  
should provide sufficient evidence to demonstrate that 
the carrying value of PPE based on valuations in prior 
years is not materially misstated.

High Agree to finding a mutually acceptable way 
forward through working with the District Valuer
and SSDC’s in-house Valuer on the timing of 
valuations

2015/16 Statement of Accounts

Amanda Card, Finance 
Manager 

6. The Council should increase its target council tax 
collection rate and ensure it's arrangements result in 
improved collection during  2015/16.

High The collection rate for 2015/16 is expected to 
improve in the second half of this year as the 
additional staffing has been added. The target 
collection rate will increase for 2016/17

Immediate and 1st April 2016

Ian Potter, Revenues and 
Benefits Manager

7. Plans to bridge the budget gaps in 2016/17 should be 
complete and plans for 2017/18 should be drawn up as 
soon as possible.

Medium Plans for 2016/17 are well underway and should 
be completed by December 2015. Plans for 
2017/18 will be drawn up in conjunction with the 
refresh of the Council Plan.

Ongoing

Donna Parham, Assistant
Director – Finance and 
Corporate Services

Appendices

P
age 49



© 2015 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Audit Findings Report  |  South Somerset District Council  |  September 2015 32

Appendix B: Audit opinion

We anticipate we will provide the Council with an unmodified audit report

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF SOUTH SOMERSET 

DISTRICT COUNCIL

We have audited the financial statements of South Somerset District Council for the year ended 31 March 
2015 under the Audit Commission Act 1998. The financial statements comprise the Movement in Reserves 
Statement, the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, the Balance Sheet, the Cash Flow 
Statement, the Statement of Accounting Policies, the Collection Fund and the related notes. The financial 
reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and the CIPFA/LASAAC
Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2014/15.

This report is made solely to the members of South Somerset District Council, as a body, in accordance with 
Part II of the Audit Commission Act 1998 and as set out in paragraph 48 of the Statement of 
Responsibilities of Auditors and Audited Bodies published by the Audit Commission in March 2010. Our 
audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the members those matters we are required to state 
to them in an auditor's report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not 
accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Authority and the Authority's members as a body, 
for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Respective responsibilities of the Assistant Director – Finance and Corporate Services and auditor

As explained more fully in the Statement of Responsibilities for the Statement of Accounts, the Assistant 
Director – Finance and Corporate Services is responsible for the preparation of the Statement of Accounts, 
which includes the financial statements, in accordance with proper practices as set out in the 
CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2014/15, and 
for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view. Our responsibility is to audit and express an opinion on 
the financial statements in accordance with applicable law and International Standards on Auditing (UK and 
Ireland). Those standards also require us to comply with the Auditing Practices Board’s Ethical Standards for 
Auditors.

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements sufficient 
to give reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from material misstatement, whether 
caused by fraud or error. This includes an assessment of: whether the accounting policies are appropriate to 
the Authority’s circumstances and have been consistently applied and adequately disclosed; the 
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by the Assistant Director – Finance and Corporate 
Services; and the overall presentation of the financial statements. In addition, we read all the financial and 
non-financial information in the explanatory foreword and summary of accounts to identify material 
inconsistencies with the audited financial statements and to identify any information that is apparently 
materially incorrect based on, or materially inconsistent with, the knowledge acquired by us in the course of 
performing the audit. If we become aware of any apparent material misstatements or inconsistencies we 
consider the implications for our report.

Opinion on financial statements

In our opinion the financial statements:
give a true and fair view of the financial position of South Somerset District Council as at 31 March 2015 
and of its expenditure and income for the year then ended; and
have been properly prepared in accordance with the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority 
Accounting in the United Kingdom 2014/15 and applicable law.

Opinion on other matters

In our opinion, the information given in the explanatory foreword and summary of accounts for the financial 
year for which the financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements.

Matters on which we report by exception

We are required to report to you if:
in our opinion the annual governance statement does not reflect compliance with ‘Delivering Good 
Governance in Local Government: a Framework’ published by CIPFA/SOLACE in June 2007; or
we issue a report in the public interest under section 8 of the Audit Commission Act 1998; or
we designate under section 11 of the Audit Commission Act 1998 a recommendation as one that requires the 
Authority to consider it at a public meeting and to decide what action to take in response; or
we exercise any other special powers of the auditor under the Audit Commission Act 1998.

We have nothing to report in these respects.

Appendices

P
age 50



© 2015 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Audit Findings Report  |  South Somerset District Council  |  September 2015 33

Conclusion on the Authority’s arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in 

the use of resources

Respective responsibilities of the Authority and the auditor

The Authority is responsible for putting in place proper arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and 
effectiveness in its use of resources, to ensure proper stewardship and governance, and to review regularly 
the adequacy and effectiveness of these arrangements.

We are required under Section 5 of the Audit Commission Act 1998 to satisfy ourselves that the Authority 
has made proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources. The 
Code of Audit Practice issued by the Audit Commission requires us to report to you our conclusion relating 
to proper arrangements, having regard to relevant criteria specified by the Audit Commission in October 
2014.

We report if significant matters have come to our attention which prevent us from concluding that the 
Authority has put in place proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use 
of resources. We are not required to consider, nor have we considered, whether all aspects of the Authority’s 
arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources are operating 
effectively.

Scope of the review of arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in the use of 

resources

We have undertaken our review in accordance with the Code of Audit Practice, having regard to the 
guidance on the specified criteria, published by the Audit Commission in October 2014, as to whether the 
Authority has proper arrangements for:
securing financial resilience; and
challenging how it secures economy, efficiency and effectiveness.

The Audit Commission has determined these two criteria as those necessary for us to consider under the 
Code of Audit Practice in satisfying ourselves whether the Authority put in place proper arrangements for 
securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources for the year ended 31 March 2015.

We planned our work in accordance with the Code of Audit Practice. Based on our risk assessment, we 
undertook such work as we considered necessary to form a view on whether, in all significant respects, the 
Authority had put in place proper arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of 
resources.

Conclusion

On the basis of our work, having regard to the guidance on the specified criteria published by the Audit 
Commission in October 2014, we are satisfied that, in all significant respects, South Somerset District Council put 
in place proper arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources for the 
year ended 31 March 2015.

Delay in certification of completion of the audit

We cannot formally conclude the audit and issue an audit certificate until we have completed our 
consideration of matters brought to our attention by local authority electors relating to the 2013/14 
accounts. We are satisfied that these matters do not have a material effect on the financial statements or a 
significant impact on our value for money conclusion.

Elizabeth Cave
for and on behalf of Grant Thornton UK LLP, Appointed Auditor

Hartwell House
55-61 Victoria Street
Bristol
BS1 6FT

[XX] September 2015

Appendices

P
age 51



© 2015 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Audit Findings Report  |  South Somerset District Council  |  September 2015

© 2015 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved. 

'Grant Thornton' means Grant Thornton UK LLP, a limited 
liability partnership. 

Grant Thornton is a member firm of Grant Thornton International Ltd 
(Grant Thornton International). References to 'Grant Thornton' are 
to the brand under which the Grant Thornton member firms operate 
and refer to one or more member firms, as the context requires. 
Grant Thornton International and the member firms are not a 
worldwide partnership. Services are delivered independently by 
member firms, which are not responsible for the services or activities 
of one another. Grant Thornton International does not provide 
services to clients. 

grant-thornton.co.uk

P
age 52



 

 

 Audit Committee Forward Plan 

 
Assistant Director: Donna Parham, Finance and Corporate Services 
Lead Officer: Becky Sanders, Democratic Service Officer 
Contact Details: Becky.sanders@southsomerset.gov.uk or (01935) 462596 
 
Purpose of the Report 
 
This report informs Members of the agreed Audit Committee Forward Plan. 

Recommendation  
 
Members are asked to:- 
 
1.  Comment upon and note the proposed Audit Committee Forward Plan as attached at 

Appendix A. 
 
Audit Committee Forward Plan  

The forward plan sets out items and issues to be discussed over the coming few months and 
is reviewed annually.  

Items marked in italics are not yet confirmed.  

Background Papers: None 
 

 
 
 

Page 53

Agenda Item 8



AUDIT COMMITTEE -  FORWARD PLAN 2015/16 

Committee Date  Responsible Officer 

22nd October 2015 TBC 

  

 
 

26 November 2015 

 Treasury Management – Second quarter 
monitoring report 

 Annual Audit Letter 

 Internal Audit – second quarter and half year 
update  

 Annual Governance Statement Action Plan 

 Risk Management Update 

 Treasury Management Practices  

 Mid-year review of Treasury Strategy – Needs 
to go on to Full Council TBC 

 Treasury Management Practices TBC 

  

 
Karen Gubbins 
 
Donna Parham 
Jo George 
 
Donna Parham 
Gary Russ 
 
 
Karen Gubbins 
Karen Gubbins 

17 December 2015 TBC 

 Certification and Update report 

   

 
Donna Parham 
 

28 January 2016 

 Annual Fraud Programme  

 Debt Write Offs Report 

 Register of staff interests – Annual Review 
 

 
Tom Chown/Lynda Creek 
Amanda Card 
Ian Clarke 

25 February 2016 

 Treasury Management Strategy and Prudential 
Indicators for 2015/16 – Needs to go to Full 
Council in March 

 Annual Governance Statement Action Plan  

 Treasury Management – Third quarter 
monitoring report 

 Internal Audit – third quarter update 

 External Audit – Certification of Housing Benefit 
Subsidy Claim 

 
 
Karen Gubbins 
 
 
Donna Parham 
Karen Gubbins 
 
Donna Parham 
Donna Parham 

24 March 2016 

 Risk Management Update 

 Health, Safety, and Welfare (Annual Report)  

 Internal Audit Plan – approve 16/17 plan 

 Internal Audit - Charter 

 External Audit – Audit Plan 
 

 
Gary Russ 
Pam Harvey 
Jo George 
Jo George 
Donna Parham 

 

Page 54


	Agenda
	5 2014-15 Annual Statement of Accounts
	6 Summary Statement of Accounts 2014-15
	Summary of Accounts 2014-15

	7 2014-15 Audit Findings Report
	SSDC - Audit Findings report - 2014-15

	8 Audit Committee Forward Plan
	Audit Commitee Forward Plan Appx A 2015-16


